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These answers are based on the Energy Commission’s interpretation of the questions received. It is the applicant’s responsibility to determine whether or not their particular proposed project is eligible for funding, by reviewing the Eligibility Requirements within the solicitation. The Energy Commission cannot give advice as to whether or not a particular project is eligible for funding, because all proposal details are not known.

General:
Q.1:	Can the Scope of Work (SOW) and Budget forms combine both a medium and heavy duty vehicle (MHD) demonstration project and an Intelligent Transportation Systems (ITS) demonstration project within a single application? 
A.1:	Yes. However, the SOW and budget should clearly identify how the costs and components are related to each project area.   
Q.2:	Can a single entity apply to each of the three program areas separately, or must all program areas be submitted under one application from the same entity?
A.2:	Each applicant is limited to a single application, which can include projects in one or more project areas. 
Q.3:	Can a single truck (with dual technologies) apply under a single application or must it be split into more than one application?
A.3:	Each applicant is limited to a single application, which can include demonstrations of multiple technology types. 
Q.4:	One application can include MHD demonstration, ITS, and natural gas vehicle (NGV) deployment.  How can applications that include all three elements be evaluated against an application that has only one of those components?  How can economic benefits and environmental benefits for projects be compared against an application that seeks funding for only one solicitation area?  How will awards be determined among the different project categories? 
A.4:	All applications will receive a single overall score. Applications will be recommended for funding beginning with the highest passing score, and will continue down the ranked list until funds available under this solicitation are exhausted for each of the three project areas identified in the solicitation manual.
As an example, a lower ranking application that proposes an ITS demonstration may be recommended for funding over a higher ranked  MHD Vehicle Demonstration application if funding under the MHD Vehicle Demonstration area has been exhausted.  Applications that propose multiple project areas may only receive funding for the project areas they’ve identified where funds have not been exhausted.
Applications for multiple project areas may achieve a higher score depending upon the specific elements of the proposed project and responses to the scoring criteria. 
Q.5:	If a technology crosses project types, for example, an electric vehicle with ITS integration, is there a clear way to segregate the benefits?
A.5:	An application encompassing multiple funding areas will only receive a single benefits score. 
Q.6:	Please explain what is meant by petroleum displacement in Scoring Criteria #6 on page 28. 
A.6:	Applications will be scored on the amount of gasoline or diesel that would be displaced by the success of the proposed project. 
Q.7:	It will be difficult to meet the 20 page limitation for the Project Narrative given the multiple project types available for funding. I would suggest that this page limitation be increased. 
A.7:	The 20 page limitation will be increased to a 25 page limit.
Q.8:	What is the modus-operandi for intellectual property (IP)-sharing from previous federally/state-funded projects? Does the Energy Commission have any restrictions with IP-sharing for projects partially funded by other agencies?
A.8:	The Energy Commission makes no claim to intellectual property developed under the Agreement that is not specified for delivery, except as expressly provided in the terms and conditions. Sample terms and conditions are available at: http://www.energy.ca.gov/contracts/GFO-15-604/

Eligibility:
Q.9:	Our company is working with fleets that deliver to the ports or take goods from the port. Would our company be an eligible applicant?
A.9:	No. Eligible applicants are limited to California seaports, operators, and tenants at those seaports. Note that you may be a subcontractor or project partner to an eligible applicant. A port operator or tenant is an entity with a contractual agreement with a port authority to operate within and move containerized goods through a California seaport. Not as the eligible applicant, but as a partner or grant subcontractor to the eligible applicant receiving a grant under this solicitation.  Eligible applicants are limited to California seaports, operators, and tenants at those seaports.  A port operator or tenant is an entity with a contractual agreement with a port authority to operate within and move containerized goods through a California seaport.
Q.10:	Are hybrid-electric auxiliary power units (APU) and transportation refrigeration units (TRUs) eligible for MHD demonstrations?
A.10:	Yes.  
Q.11:	We are an aftermarket parts manufacturing company developing an aerodynamic device for trucks. The company's customers often visit ports.  Can we apply for the program with one of their fleet partners to develop prototypes?
A.11:	No.
Q.12:	For a MHD demonstration project, can truck mileage outside the seaports be counted as valid work for the project even if the truck does not visit the port directly?
A.12:	Yes.	
Q.13:	Can a feasibility study be one small aspect of a larger project?
A.13:	No. 
Q.14:	Would a company that produces collapsible cargo containers designed to reduce repositioning costs be eligible?
A.14:	More information on the technology, technology application, and use in a proposed project is needed to respond. 
Q.15:	First vehicle prototypes are ineligible for MHD demonstration projects.  Does that preclude existing vehicles that are being converted to electric vehicle/heavy electric vehicle operation for the first time?
A.15:	Under this solicitation, the first vehicle prototype refers to the MHD vehicle technology being demonstrated for the first time in the field. 
Q.16:	Is a drayage trucking company that moves containers in and out of a port terminal, but not a port tenant, eligible for funding?
A.16:	No. The drayage trucking company is not eligible to submit an application. However, the drayage trucking company may be a subcontractor or a project partner to an eligible applicant.  
Q.17:	Would up-fitting of older electric yard vehicles to newer technologies be eligible under demonstrations?
A.17:	Yes. 
Q.18:	Commercially available technologies are ineligible for MHD demonstrations.  Does that apply to ITS projects as well?
A.18:	Per Addendum #1, commercially available technologies for ITS projects are eligible. 
Q.19:	Would management of refrigerated goods including the use of new vehicle technologies be eligible under ITS demonstration? 
A.19:	Yes. 
Q.20:	Is there a minimum/preferred number of vehicles that must be included as part of an ITS demonstration?
A.20:	No. 
Q.21: 	Can you confirm that an applicant would need to submit a single Application, Project Narrative, SOW, and Budget if applying for all three project areas? 
A.21:	Yes, applicants may only submit one application covering all of the areas. 
Q.22: 	What is the definition of pre-commercial?
A.22:	For purposes of this solicitation, pre-commercial means the demonstrated product or technology has not been made available for commercial sale.
Q.23:	Are fuel costs eligible under the MHD vehicle demonstration category?
A.23:	Fuel costs are eligible as match share only.  	
Q.24:	Is fueling infrastructure eligible under the MHD vehicle demonstrations?
A.24:	Per Addendum #1, fueling infrastructure is eligible as match share only.
Budget:
Q.25:	How does the available funding work? 
A.25:	There is a total of $17,805,625 available for projects under this solicitation. Specifically, $13,805,625 is available for MHD demonstration projects, $2,000,000 is available for ITS demonstration projects, and $2,000,000 is available for natural gas vehicle (NGV) deployment projects. 
	The maximum funding amount per application is $7,000,000. Specifically, the maximum amount per application for MHD demonstrations is $5,000,000, for ITS demonstration projects is $1,000,000, and for NGV deployment is $1,000,000.
	Per Addendum #1, the minimum funding amount per application is $250,000 for MHD demonstrations, $250,000 for ITS demonstrations, and $250,000 for NGV deployments. 
	The Energy Commission reserves the right to increase or decrease the amount of funding available under this solicitation.
Q.26:	The solicitation states that funding from California agencies was ineligible as a match share source.  Are the Air Resources Board (ARB) and California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) considered state agencies under this solicitation? 
A.26:	Yes.
Q.27:	Can the costs of licensing or obtaining technologies be used as match share for ITS demonstrations?
A.27:	Yes, provided the match share claimed is directly related to the proposed project. 
Q.28:	If match funding was previously committed in another California project, can it be leveraged as match share in this solicitation? As an example, can an existing ITS project funded from a state agency in the amount of $50 million be used in part as match share for a proposed project under this solicitation? 
A.28:	No. Match share funding from California state agencies is ineligible. In addition, match share can only be expended only after the release of a Notice of Proposed Award (NOPA) recommending the project for funding. Match share expended prior to grant agreement execution is done at the Awardees’ own risk; the Energy Commission is not liable for Awardees’ match share costs if the grant agreement is not approved, if grant agreement approval is delayed, or if the match share expenditure is not allowable under the terms and conditions of the grant agreement or this solicitation,    
Q.29:	What are metrics for assessing cost-effectiveness?  
A.29:	Applications will be assessed on the amount of lifecycle GHG emissions reduced over the project duration per dollar of Energy Commission funding. Applications will also be assessed on how the proposed project will be implemented in a manner to minimize costs to the state.
Q.30:	If applicant uses existing equipment/vehicles from projects funded by other agencies, should the value of the equipment/vehicles be reflected in the budget estimates of cash and in-kind contributions?
A.30:  	Eligible equipment/vehicles funded from other sources specific to the proposed project should be identified as in-kind match share. Match share originating from a California state agency is ineligible under this solicitation. 



